

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

ATLAS BREW WORKS, LLC,
2052 West Virginia Ave, NE, Suite 102
Washington, DC 20002

Plaintiff,

v.

MATTHEW G. WHITAKER, in his official
capacity as Acting Attorney General of the
United States,

950 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W.
Washington, DC 20530-0001

Defendant.

) Civil Action No.

)

) **COMPLAINT**

)

) **TEMPORARY RESTRAINING**

) **ORDER AND PRELIMINARY**

) **INJUNCTION REQUESTED**

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

Case: 1:19-cv-00079
Assigned To : Cooper, Christopher R.
Assign. Date : 1/15/2019
Description: TRO/PI (D-DECK)

COMPLAINT

INTRODUCTION

The First Amendment never “shuts down.” Always essential, it remains in effect regardless of what Congress may or may not decide with respect to the federal budget. Americans’ fundamental right to free speech requires no Congressional authorization.

The Framers would have recoiled at the notion that Americans would fear criminal prosecution for speaking, merely because Congress has not enacted a bill funding the operation of a content-based prior restraint on their speech. Yet that is the quandary afflicting Atlas Brew Works, a neighborhood production craft brewer in our Nation’s capital. The Federal Alcohol Administration Act, 27 U.S.C. § 207, subjects Atlas to criminal penalties should it ship beer with unapproved labels in interstate commerce. But Congress has not enacted legislation funding the issuance of “Certificates Of Label Approval,” or “COLAs,” for beer labels at the present time. There is no telling whether or when such legislation might be forthcoming, or how long it might take the government to approve COLA applications should funding for this activity be someday restored.

RECEIVED
JAN 15 2019
Clerk, U.S. District & Bankruptcy
Courts for the District of Columbia

But Atlas must exercise its First Amendment speech rights *now*.

Atlas sits on 40 barrels of seasonal, perishable beer—an apricot-infused India pale ale known as THE PRECIOUS ONE—that it cannot lawfully label for interstate sale in kegs, as scheduled, for lack of a COLA. Atlas needs not only to sell this product, but to have its fermenting tanks emptied of THE PRECIOUS ONE to make way for the production of other beer, including its summer seasonal brew. The government has approved the brewery’s label for the sale of THE PRECIOUS ONE in cans, but stopped reviewing COLA applications before reaching Atlas’s application to approve THE PRECIOUS ONE’s “keg collar” label. Atlas cannot can its entire production of THE PRECIOUS ONE. It must ship substantial amounts of this beer in kegs, in interstate commerce and soon, lest THE PRECIOUS ONE become worthless. And it has other beers in the pipeline, requiring labels not yet approved by the government.

Atlas does not seek a mandatory injunction to reopen the COLA function. It does not seek the redirection or appropriation of any federal funds. It raises no challenge to the COLA process itself, or to any of the standards the government would apply in licensing beer labels were the government back in the licensing business.

Rather, Atlas’s propositions are simple: It cannot be denied the right to speak for lack of meeting an impossible condition. The *right* to free speech is not a favor that the government affords Americans when political circumstances allow. Moreover, the COLA requirement, a content-based prior restraint on speech, is currently unconstitutional because the licensing authority withholds permission indefinitely. Under these circumstances, the COLA requirement’s enforcement must be enjoined.

THE PARTIES

1. Plaintiff Atlas Brew Works LLC (“Atlas”), is a limited liability company organized under the laws of the State of Delaware, whose headquarters are located in the District of Columbia, and whose principal place of business is located in the District of Columbia. Atlas Brew Works creates and sells craft beers from its solar-powered facility, shipping approximately 60,000 cases a year to its network of wholesalers who in turn distribute Atlas Brew Works beers to its corporate customers in the retail, bar, and restaurant businesses. Atlas Brew Works brings this action on its own behalf and on behalf of its customers and the consumers of its products.

2. Defendant Matthew Whitaker is sued in his capacity as the Acting Attorney General of the United States. As the Acting Attorney General, Whitaker is responsible for executing and administering laws, customs, practices, and policies of the United States, and is presently enforcing the laws, customs, practices and policies complained of in this action..

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

3. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1346, 2201, and 2202.

4. Venue lies in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Atlas Brew Works Speaks Via Beer Labels

5. Speech is essential to Atlas Brew Works. Like all beverage producers, Atlas Brew Works must label the containers of its products that it wishes to distribute. It cannot sell, and no one will purchase, random unidentified liquids.

6. Atlas Brew Works expresses itself through the labels it places on cans and kegs containing its beers. Its labels communicate essential information to consumers, such as a beer’s

brand name, the style and type of beer, a beer's ingredients, its origin, alcohol content, and important safety information. The labels also contain other useful information, such as suggested food pairings and Atlas's web address where individuals may read more messages from Atlas. And by its choice of font, color, artwork, and other design elements of its beer labels, Atlas Brew Works seeks to enhance consumers' enjoyment of its product and convey and further the Atlas brand.

The Criminalization of Unapproved Beer Labels

7. The Federal Alcohol Administration Act, 27 U.S.C. § 201 et seq. ("the FAA Act") regulates the content of alcoholic beverage labels shipped in interstate commerce by requiring and forbidding various types of speech that such labels might convey. The Act provides that "[i]t shall be unlawful for any person engaged in business as a . . . brewer . . . [t]o sell or ship or deliver for sale or shipment, or otherwise introduce in interstate or foreign commerce . . . any . . . malt beverages in bottles, unless such products are bottled, packaged, and labeled in conformity with such regulations, to be prescribed by the Secretary of the Treasury, with respect to packaging, marking, branding, and labeling and size and fill of container . . ." 27 U.S.C. § 205(e).

8. The regulations issued by the Treasury Secretary must prohibit various false, misleading, obscene, or misleading statements, and the disparagement of competitors' products; and require the disclosure of the beer's identity and quality, the net contents of the container, and the identity of the beer's manufacturer, 27 U.S.C. § 205(e), and this, they do. *See* 27 C.F.R. Part 7.

9. To ensure compliance with federal beer label content standards, the FAA Act subjects all beer labels to a prior restraint, known as a "COLA".

In order to prevent the sale or shipment or other introduction of . . . malt beverages in interstate or foreign commerce, if bottled, packaged, or labeled in violation of the requirements of this subsection . . . no brewer or wholesaler of malt beverages shall bottle . . . for sale or any other commercial purpose . . . malt beverages . . . unless, upon application to the Secretary of the Treasury, he has obtained and has in his possession a certificate of label

approval covering the . . . malt beverages, issued by the Secretary in such manner and form as he shall by regulations prescribe: *Provided*, That any such . . . brewer or wholesaler of malt beverages shall be exempt from the requirements of this subsection if, upon application to the Secretary, he shows to the satisfaction of the Secretary that the . . . malt beverages to be bottled by the applicant are not to be sold, or offered for sale, or shipped or delivered for shipment, or otherwise introduced, in interstate or foreign commerce.

27 U.S.C. § 205(e). A Treasury regulation likewise provides that “[n]o person may bottle or pack malt beverages, or remove malt beverages from the plant where bottled or packed unless an approved certificate of label approval, TTB Form 5100.31, is issued.” 27 C.F.R. § 7.41(a). But brewers need no longer seek exemptions from the label approval requirement when selling beer intrastate. *See* TTB Ruling 2013-1 (Mar. 27, 2013), available at <https://www.ttb.gov/rulings/2013-1.pdf>

10. The FAA Act, including the COLA requirement, is administered by the Treasury Department’s Alcohol and Tobacco Tax and Trade Bureau (“TTB”). COLA applications for beer are typically processed within three weeks.

11. The Attorney General may bring an action in the relevant United States District Court “to prevent and restrain violations of” the FAA Act. Shipping beer in interstate commerce without a COLA, in violation of 27 U.S.C. § 205, is a misdemeanor punishable by a fine of up to \$1,000 per offense, although the Treasury Secretary is authorized to settle for half. 27 U.S.C. § 207.

The Prohibition of Atlas Brew Works’s Labels

12. On January 3, 2019, Atlas began brewing the first 40 of 100 planned barrels of THE PRECIOUS ONE, a seasonal, apricot-infused India pale ale that it intends to sell between February and April, 2019. Atlas distributes approximately 60% of its beer in half-barrel kegs, and approximately 40% of its beer in cans. Of the initial 40 barrel batch of THE PRECIOUS ONE, Atlas would fill approximately 40 kegs. It intends to retain four of these kegs for its tap room. Half the remaining

kegs will be distributed elsewhere within the District of Columbia, and the other half will be distributed to Atlas's five out-of-state distributors in Maryland, Virginia, and Tennessee.

13. On November 28, 2018, Atlas applied for a COLA for the labeling of cans of THE PRECIOUS ONE. On December 17, 2018, the TTB approved this application.

14. On December 20, 2018, Atlas applied for a COLA for the label to be applied to kegs of THE PRECIOUS ONE, and for COLAs for nine other labels, of which five have been approved.

15. On December 22, 2018, appropriations lapsed for various government agencies, including the TTB, without the TTB having taken any action on Atlas's five pending COLA applications, including the COLA application for THE PRECIOUS ONE keg label.

16. "No Money shall be drawn from the Treasury, but in Consequence of Appropriations made by Law . . ." U.S. Const. art. 1, § 9. cl. 7.

17. The TTB's home page now greets visitors with an advisory titled,

APPROPRIATIONS LAPSE NOTICE
CESSATION OF TTB OPERATIONS
WITH LIMITED ACCESS TO
www.ttb.gov

18. TTB advises that COLA "submissions will not be reviewed or approved until appropriations are enacted. In addition, other information on this website may not be up to date, and TTB will not be able to respond to questions or comments submitted via the website until appropriations are enacted. TTB will suspend all non-expected TTB operations, and no personnel will be available to respond to any inquiries, including emails, telephone calls, facsimiles, or other communications. The website and operations will fully resume when appropriations are reenacted. TTB has directed employees NOT to report to work and they are prohibited by federal law from volunteering their services during a lapse in appropriations. Once funding has been restored and the

government shutdown is over, we will work to restore regular service as soon as possible.” See <https://www.ttb.gov/index.shtml> (last visited Jan. 13, 2019).

19. The initial 40 barrels of THE PRECIOUS ONE are ready for consumption. The beer is perishable after 120 days, and seasonal. Atlas cannot retain THE PRECIOUS ONE in its fermenting tank indefinitely, and it will need to have the tank vacated of THE PRECIOUS ONE to make room for the production of additional beer. Atlas cannot realistically sell all of THE PRECIOUS ONE intended for interstate keg delivery by other means. It can sell only so much beer in its tap room, in kegs for distribution within Washington, D.C., and in cans. In any event, Atlas intends to continue conveying its beer labels beyond the District of Columbia, so that its public in the various states may continue receiving Atlas’s messages (and its beer).

20. Atlas estimates its losses from being unable to sell THE PRECIOUS ONE kegs in interstate commerce would be \$5,000 for the current 40 barrel batch, and \$15,000 for the total planned 100 barrel production run. These losses would multiply greatly, threatening Atlas’s continued existence, as the COLA prohibition effectively shuts down further production of new beers and the rebranding of existing beers.

21. Atlas refrains from labeling and placing kegs of THE PRECIOUS ONE in interstate commerce because it does not have a Certificate Of Label Approval for any label that it might place on THE PRECIOUS ONE kegs, and it reasonably fears prosecution under 27 U.S.C. § 207 for violating the COLA requirement of 27 U.S.C. § 205(e) and 27 C.F.R. § 7.41(a). Atlas will refrain from publishing other new beer labels indefinitely for the same reason.

**COUNT ONE
RIGHT OF FREE SPEECH, U.S. CONST. AMEND. I**

22. Beer labels are a form of expression protected by the First Amendment. *See, e.g., Rubin v. Coors Brewing Co.*, 514 U.S. 476 (1995); *Bad Frog Brewery, Inc. v. New York State Liquor Authority*, 134 F.3d 87 (2d Cir. 1998); *Flying Dog Brewery, LLLP v. Mich. Liquor Control Comm'n*, 597 Fed. Appx. 342 (6th Cir. 2015); *Hornell Brewing Co. v. Brady*, 819 F. Supp. 1227 (E.D.N.Y. 1993).

23. Because, as a matter of law, no mechanism exists by which brewers might obtain a Certificate Of Label Approval for their beer, criminalizing the publication of unapproved beer labels violates the First Amendment right of free speech on its face, and as applied to Atlas Brew Works's labels. Atlas is entitled to declaratory and injunctive relief against these violations of its First Amendment rights and those of its customers.

**COUNT TWO
RIGHT OF FREE SPEECH — PRIOR RESTRAINT, U.S. CONST. AMEND. I**

24. The Certificate Of Label Approval requirement of 27 U.S.C. § 205(e) and 27 C.F.R. § 7.41, is a content-based prior restraint on speech.

25. As a matter of law, this prior restraint is currently unbounded as to time. It therefore violates the First Amendment right of free speech.

26. Defendant's enforcement of this content-based prior restraint, on its face and as-applied against Atlas Brew Works's labels, notwithstanding the fact that applications to approve labels under the scheme are indefinitely unreviewable as a matter of law, violates Atlas's First Amendment right to publish its beer labels, and the First Amendment right of Atlas's customers and consumers' right to receive the labels. Atlas is entitled to declaratory and injunctive relief against these violations of the First Amendment.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully requests that this Court:

1. Issue a temporary restraining order, preliminary injunction, and permanent injunction, prohibiting defendant, his officers, agents, servants, employees, and all persons in active concert or participation with them who receive actual notice of the injunction, from enforcing 27 U.S.C. § 207 against Atlas Beer Works LLC for bottling, distributing, displaying, or advertising kegs of THE PRECIOUS ONE without a Certificate Of Label Approval.
2. Issue preliminary and permanent injunctions prohibiting defendant, his officers, agents, servants, employees, and all persons in active concert or participation with them who receive actual notice of the injunction, from enforcing 27 U.S.C. § 207 against the bottling, distributing, displaying, or advertising of beer without a Certificate Of Label Approval.
3. Declaratory relief consistent with the injunction;
4. Costs of suit;
5. Attorney fees and costs pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2412; and
6. Any other further relief as the Court deems just and appropriate.

Dated: January 15, 2019

Respectfully submitted,

Alan Gura (D.C. Bar No. 453449)
Gura PLLC
916 Prince Street, Suite 107
Alexandria, VA 22314
703.835.9085/Fax 703.997.7665

By: _____

Alan Gura

Attorney for Plaintiff Atlas Brew Works LLC

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

ATLAS BREW WORKS, LLC,)	Civil Action No.
)	
Plaintiff,)	
v.)	
)	
MATTHEW G. WHITAKER, in his official)	
capacity as Acting Attorney General of the)	
United States,)	
)	
Defendant.)	
_____)	

DECLARATION OF ALAN GURA

I, Alan Gura, am competent to state, and declare the following based on my personal knowledge:

1. On January 14, 2019, I gave notice of the filing of the complaint in this action, and the request for a temporary restraining order, by leaving detailed voicemail messages for Daniel Van Horn, Chief of the Civil Division of the U.S. Attorney’s Office for the District of Columbia, and Ralph Cox, the Administrative Officer for the U.S. Attorney’s Office for the District of Columbia.

2. Later that evening, as soon as the pleadings were completed at approximately 6:45 p.m., I provided copies of them—the complaint, motion for temporary restraining order and preliminary injunction, memorandum in support, the declaration of Justin Cox, exhibits, and proposed orders—via email to the U.S. Attorney’s main email address, dc.outreach@usdoj.gov, as well as the email addresses for Mr. Van Horn, Mr. Cox, and the three Deputy Chiefs of the U.S. Attorney’s Civil Division listed on that office’s website, Brian Hudak, Heather Graham-Oliver, and Doris Cole-Huff.

3. Only the email to Ms. Cole-Huff was returned as undeliverable. I received an auto-reply from Ms. Graham-Oliver's email that her availability to read email is limited owing to the shutdown, and to contact Mr. Van Horn for assistance. Accordingly, I can only deduce that Mr. Van Horn is working notwithstanding the shutdown, and that he received my voicemail message and copies of the various pleadings. This morning, I followed up by providing a copy of this declaration to Mr. Van Horn.

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed this the 15th day of January, 2019



Alan Gura

CIVIL COVER SHEET

JS-44 (Rev. 6/17 DC)

<p>I. (a) PLAINTIFFS Atlas Brew Works, LLC</p> <p>(b) COUNTY OF RESIDENCE OF FIRST LISTED PLAINTIFF <u>11001</u> (EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES)</p> <p>(c) ATTORNEYS (FIRM NAME, ADDRESS, AND TELEPHONE NUMBER) Alan Gura Gura PLLC 916 Prince Street, Suite 107 Alexandria, VA 22314 703.835.9085</p>	<p>DEFENDANTS Matthew G. Whitaker, in his official capacity as Acting Attorney General of the United States</p> <p>COUNTY OF RESIDENCE OF FIRST LISTED DEFENDANT _____ (IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY)</p> <p style="font-size: 1.2em;">Case: 1:19-cv-00079 Assigned To : Cooper, Christopher R. Assign. Date : 1/15/2019 Description: TRO/PI (D-DECK)</p>																												
<p>II. BASIS OF JURISDICTION (PLACE AN X IN ONE BOX ONLY)</p> <table style="width: 100%;"> <tr> <td><input type="radio"/> 1 U.S. Government Plaintiff</td> <td><input type="radio"/> 3 Federal Question (U.S. Government Not a Party)</td> </tr> <tr> <td><input checked="" type="radio"/> 2 U.S. Government Defendant</td> <td><input type="radio"/> 4 Diversity (Indicate Citizenship of Parties in item III)</td> </tr> </table>	<input type="radio"/> 1 U.S. Government Plaintiff	<input type="radio"/> 3 Federal Question (U.S. Government Not a Party)	<input checked="" type="radio"/> 2 U.S. Government Defendant	<input type="radio"/> 4 Diversity (Indicate Citizenship of Parties in item III)	<p>III. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES (PLACE AN X IN ONE BOX FOR PLAINTIFF AND ONE BOX FOR DEFENDANT) FOR DIVERSITY CASES ONLY:</p> <table style="width: 100%; text-align: center;"> <thead> <tr> <th></th> <th>PTF</th> <th>DFT</th> <th></th> <th>PTF</th> <th>DFT</th> </tr> </thead> <tbody> <tr> <td>Citizen of this State</td> <td><input type="radio"/> 1</td> <td><input type="radio"/> 1</td> <td>Incorporated or Principal Place of Business in This State</td> <td><input type="radio"/> 4</td> <td><input type="radio"/> 4</td> </tr> <tr> <td>Citizen of Another State</td> <td><input type="radio"/> 2</td> <td><input type="radio"/> 2</td> <td>Incorporated and Principal Place of Business in Another State</td> <td><input type="radio"/> 5</td> <td><input type="radio"/> 5</td> </tr> <tr> <td>Citizen or Subject of a Foreign Country</td> <td><input type="radio"/> 3</td> <td><input type="radio"/> 3</td> <td>Foreign Nation</td> <td><input type="radio"/> 6</td> <td><input type="radio"/> 6</td> </tr> </tbody> </table>		PTF	DFT		PTF	DFT	Citizen of this State	<input type="radio"/> 1	<input type="radio"/> 1	Incorporated or Principal Place of Business in This State	<input type="radio"/> 4	<input type="radio"/> 4	Citizen of Another State	<input type="radio"/> 2	<input type="radio"/> 2	Incorporated and Principal Place of Business in Another State	<input type="radio"/> 5	<input type="radio"/> 5	Citizen or Subject of a Foreign Country	<input type="radio"/> 3	<input type="radio"/> 3	Foreign Nation	<input type="radio"/> 6	<input type="radio"/> 6
<input type="radio"/> 1 U.S. Government Plaintiff	<input type="radio"/> 3 Federal Question (U.S. Government Not a Party)																												
<input checked="" type="radio"/> 2 U.S. Government Defendant	<input type="radio"/> 4 Diversity (Indicate Citizenship of Parties in item III)																												
	PTF	DFT		PTF	DFT																								
Citizen of this State	<input type="radio"/> 1	<input type="radio"/> 1	Incorporated or Principal Place of Business in This State	<input type="radio"/> 4	<input type="radio"/> 4																								
Citizen of Another State	<input type="radio"/> 2	<input type="radio"/> 2	Incorporated and Principal Place of Business in Another State	<input type="radio"/> 5	<input type="radio"/> 5																								
Citizen or Subject of a Foreign Country	<input type="radio"/> 3	<input type="radio"/> 3	Foreign Nation	<input type="radio"/> 6	<input type="radio"/> 6																								

IV. CASE ASSIGNMENT AND NATURE OF SUIT

(Place an X in one category, A-N, that best represents your Cause of Action and one in a corresponding Nature of Suit)

<p><input type="radio"/> A. Antitrust</p> <p><input type="checkbox"/> 410 Antitrust</p>	<p><input type="radio"/> B. Personal Injury/Malpractice</p> <p><input type="checkbox"/> 310 Airplane <input type="checkbox"/> 315 Airplane Product Liability <input type="checkbox"/> 320 Assault, Libel & Slander <input type="checkbox"/> 330 Federal Employers Liability <input type="checkbox"/> 340 Marine <input type="checkbox"/> 345 Marine Product Liability <input type="checkbox"/> 350 Motor Vehicle <input type="checkbox"/> 355 Motor Vehicle Product Liability <input type="checkbox"/> 360 Other Personal Injury <input type="checkbox"/> 362 Medical Malpractice <input type="checkbox"/> 365 Product Liability <input type="checkbox"/> 367 Health Care/Pharmaceutical Personal Injury Product Liability <input type="checkbox"/> 368 Asbestos Product Liability</p>	<p><input type="radio"/> C. Administrative Agency Review</p> <p><input type="checkbox"/> 151 Medicare Act</p> <p><u>Social Security</u> <input type="checkbox"/> 861 IIIA (1395f) <input type="checkbox"/> 862 Black Lung (923) <input type="checkbox"/> 863 DIWC/DIWW (405(g)) <input type="checkbox"/> 864 SSID Title XVI <input type="checkbox"/> 865 RSI (405(g))</p> <p><u>Other Statutes</u> <input type="checkbox"/> 891 Agricultural Acts <input type="checkbox"/> 893 Environmental Matters <input type="checkbox"/> 890 Other Statutory Actions (If Administrative Agency is Involved)</p>	<p><input checked="" type="radio"/> D. Temporary Restraining Order/Preliminary Injunction</p> <p>Any nature of suit from any category may be selected for this category of case assignment. *(If Antitrust, then A governs)*</p>
<p><input type="radio"/> E. General Civil (Other) OR <input type="radio"/> F. Pro Se General Civil</p>			
<p><u>Real Property</u> <input type="checkbox"/> 210 Land Condemnation <input type="checkbox"/> 220 Foreclosure <input type="checkbox"/> 230 Rent, Lease & Ejectment <input type="checkbox"/> 240 Torts to Land <input type="checkbox"/> 245 Tort Product Liability <input type="checkbox"/> 290 All Other Real Property</p> <p><u>Personal Property</u> <input type="checkbox"/> 370 Other Fraud <input type="checkbox"/> 371 Truth in Lending <input type="checkbox"/> 380 Other Personal Property Damage <input type="checkbox"/> 385 Property Damage Product Liability</p>	<p><u>Bankruptcy</u> <input type="checkbox"/> 422 Appeal 27 USC 158 <input type="checkbox"/> 423 Withdrawal 28 USC 157</p> <p><u>Prisoner Petitions</u> <input type="checkbox"/> 535 Death Penalty <input type="checkbox"/> 540 Mandamus & Other <input type="checkbox"/> 550 Civil Rights <input type="checkbox"/> 555 Prison Conditions <input type="checkbox"/> 560 Civil Detainee - Conditions of Confinement</p> <p><u>Property Rights</u> <input type="checkbox"/> 820 Copyrights <input type="checkbox"/> 830 Patent <input type="checkbox"/> 835 Patent - Abbreviated New Drug Application <input type="checkbox"/> 840 Trademark</p>	<p><u>Federal Tax Suits</u> <input type="checkbox"/> 870 Taxes (US plaintiff or defendant) <input type="checkbox"/> 871 IRS-Third Party 26 USC 7609</p> <p><u>Forfeiture/Penalty</u> <input type="checkbox"/> 625 Drug Related Seizure of Property 21 USC 881 <input type="checkbox"/> 690 Other</p> <p><u>Other Statutes</u> <input type="checkbox"/> 375 False Claims Act <input type="checkbox"/> 376 Qui Tam (31 USC 3729(a)) <input type="checkbox"/> 400 State Reapportionment <input type="checkbox"/> 430 Banks & Banking <input type="checkbox"/> 450 Commerce/ICC Rates/etc. <input type="checkbox"/> 460 Deportation</p>	<p><input type="checkbox"/> 462 Naturalization Application <input type="checkbox"/> 465 Other Immigration Actions <input type="checkbox"/> 470 Racketeer Influenced & Corrupt Organization <input type="checkbox"/> 480 Consumer Credit <input type="checkbox"/> 490 Cable/Satellite TV <input type="checkbox"/> 850 Securities/Commodities/Exchange <input type="checkbox"/> 896 Arbitration <input type="checkbox"/> 899 Administrative Procedure Act/Review or Appeal of Agency Decision <input type="checkbox"/> 950 Constitutionality of State Statutes <input type="checkbox"/> 890 Other Statutory Actions (If not administrative agency review or Privacy Act)</p>

<input type="radio"/> G. Habeas Corpus/ 2255 <input type="checkbox"/> 530 Habeas Corpus – General <input type="checkbox"/> 510 Motion/Vacate Sentence <input type="checkbox"/> 463 Habeas Corpus – Alien Detainee	<input type="radio"/> H. Employment Discrimination <input type="checkbox"/> 442 Civil Rights – Employment (criteria: race, gender/sex, national origin, discrimination, disability, age, religion, retaliation) *(If pro se, select this deck)*	<input type="radio"/> I. FOIA/Privacy Act <input type="checkbox"/> 895 Freedom of Information Act <input type="checkbox"/> 890 Other Statutory Actions (if Privacy Act) *(If pro se, select this deck)*	<input type="radio"/> J. Student Loan <input type="checkbox"/> 152 Recovery of Defaulted Student Loan (excluding veterans)
<input type="radio"/> K. Labor/ERISA (non-employment) <input type="checkbox"/> 710 Fair Labor Standards Act <input type="checkbox"/> 720 Labor/Mgmt. Relations <input type="checkbox"/> 740 Labor Railway Act <input type="checkbox"/> 751 Family and Medical Leave Act <input type="checkbox"/> 790 Other Labor Litigation <input type="checkbox"/> 791 Empl. Ret. Inc. Security Act	<input type="radio"/> L. Other Civil Rights (non-employment) <input type="checkbox"/> 441 Voting (if not Voting Rights Act) <input type="checkbox"/> 443 Housing/Accommodations <input checked="" type="checkbox"/> 440 Other Civil Rights <input type="checkbox"/> 445 Americans w/Disabilities – Employment <input type="checkbox"/> 446 Americans w/Disabilities – Other <input type="checkbox"/> 448 Education	<input type="radio"/> M. Contract <input type="checkbox"/> 110 Insurance <input type="checkbox"/> 120 Marine <input type="checkbox"/> 130 Miller Act <input type="checkbox"/> 140 Negotiable Instrument <input type="checkbox"/> 150 Recovery of Overpayment & Enforcement of Judgment <input type="checkbox"/> 153 Recovery of Overpayment of Veteran's Benefits <input type="checkbox"/> 160 Stockholder's Suits <input type="checkbox"/> 190 Other Contracts <input type="checkbox"/> 195 Contract Product Liability <input type="checkbox"/> 196 Franchise	<input type="radio"/> N. Three-Judge Court <input type="checkbox"/> 441 Civil Rights – Voting (if Voting Rights Act)

V. ORIGIN

1 Original Proceeding
 2 Removed from State Court
 3 Remanded from Appellate Court
 4 Reinstated or Reopened
 5 Transferred from another district (specify)
 6 Multi-district Litigation
 7 Appeal to District Judge from Mag. Judge
 8 Multi-district Litigation – Direct File

VI. CAUSE OF ACTION (CITE THE U.S. CIVIL STATUTE UNDER WHICH YOU ARE FILING AND WRITE A BRIEF STATEMENT OF CAUSE.)

28 U.S.C. § 2201: Relief from application of Alcohol Administration Act, 27 USC 207, in violation of 1st and 5th Amends.

VII. REQUESTED IN COMPLAINT	CHECK IF THIS IS A CLASS ACTION UNDER F.R.C.P. 23 <input type="checkbox"/>	DEMAND \$ _____	JURY DEMAND: YES <input type="checkbox"/> NO <input checked="" type="checkbox"/>
VIII. RELATED CASE(S) IF ANY	(See instruction)	YES <input type="checkbox"/> NO <input checked="" type="checkbox"/>	If yes, please complete related case form

DATE: Jan. 15, 2019	SIGNATURE OF ATTORNEY OF RECORD
---------------------	---------------------------------

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING CIVIL COVER SHEET JS-44
Authority for Civil Cover Sheet

The JS-44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replaces nor supplements the filings and services of pleadings or other papers as required by law, except as provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. Consequently, a civil cover sheet is submitted to the Clerk of Court for each civil complaint filed. Listed below are tips for completing the civil cover sheet. These tips coincide with the Roman Numerals on the cover sheet.

- I. COUNTY OF RESIDENCE OF FIRST LISTED PLAINTIFF/DEFENDANT (b) County of residence: Use 11001 to indicate plaintiff if resident of Washington, DC, 88888 if plaintiff is resident of United States but not Washington, DC, and 99999 if plaintiff is outside the United States.
- III. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES: This section is completed only if diversity of citizenship was selected as the Basis of Jurisdiction under Section II.
- IV. CASE ASSIGNMENT AND NATURE OF SUIT: The assignment of a judge to your case will depend on the category you select that best represents the primary cause of action found in your complaint. You may select only one category. You must also select one corresponding nature of suit found under the category of the case.
- VI. CAUSE OF ACTION: Cite the U.S. Civil Statute under which you are filing and write a brief statement of the primary cause.
- VIII. RELATED CASE(S), IF ANY: If you indicated that there is a related case, you must complete a related case form, which may be obtained from the Clerk's Office.

Because of the need for accurate and complete information, you should ensure the accuracy of the information provided prior to signing the form.